
Draft 

TOWN OF RED HOOK 

CONSERVATION ADVISORY COUNCIL 

Minutes of meeting 

June 9, 2011 

Members present:   Chairwoman Brenda Cagle, Laurie Husted, Susan Ellis, Sarah Imboden, Zoie Riel,        

Denis Collet (7:35 P.M.)   Absent:  Anne Rubin, Dr. Jane Ferguson 

Guests:  Councilwoman Micki Strawinski, Councilman Harry Colgan (7:26 P.M.), Energy Manager Anne Marie 

Hirschberger, James Van Norstrand and Brianna Bailey from Pace University  Energy and Climate Center. 

CALL TO ORDER:  Chairwoman Brenda Cagle called the meeting to order at 7:10 P.M.  She announced that 

Sarah Imboden has finally received her appointment to the CAC; members welcomed her. 

MINUTES OF THE MAY 11, 2011 MEETING:  Secretary Susan Ellis reported that Supervisor Sue Crane had e-

mailed a correction and clarification of the Cellular Antennae on Town Water Tower discussion on page 2 of 

the May 11 minutes.  Supervisor Crane noted that the cellular tower is not on Water District property 

containing the Town water tower.  The Town purchased a separate parcel adjoining the Water Tower 

property to allow for the construction of a cellular tower, so that any impact by storm events on the cell 

tower would not affect the water tower.  

The minutes were approved as amended with a motion made by Sarah Imboden and seconded by Laurie 

Husted. 

Brenda Cagle reported that for Photovoltaic Grants for Farms under Other New Business on page 4, she sent 

two letters of support from the CAC for the applications for photovoltaic grants by Rose Hill Farm and 

Northwind Farm 

ENERGY CONSULTANT WORK:  Energy Manager Anne Marie Hirschberger introduced James Van Norstrand 

(who has spoken previously with the CAC ) and Brianna Bailey from Pace University Energy and Climate 

Center.  Anne Marie stated that she and her colleagues are looking to set a Climate Action Plan.  She spoke 

about the status of the Greenhouse Gas Inventory, and whether or not work was needed on it.  She noted 

that over the last month they looked at the Greenhouse Gas Inventory work done for Red Hook and found 

some gaps in the information on the residential sector, but over all, they thought that it was sufficient to use 

for targeting an action plan.  She added that the majority of the Town’s greenhouse gasses were produced 

by the residential sector. 

Anne Marie mentioned that the transportation sector also needs more work.  She said that it is the hardest 

to get information for this area and will need the group to dig in a bit.  Lindsay Chapman, the CAC intern 

who worked on the Greenhouse Gas Inventory for Red Hook gave Anne Marie information on how she 

calculated transportation emissions, but Brianna may look at other ways to pull out the information.  

Lindsay used census information to extract work mileage; she looked at if you live in Red Hook, where do 

you go. 



Laurie Husted asked Anne Marie if she had good absolute figures on electric usage from Central Hudson.  

James Van Norstrand answered that yes, their data is good, but the energy group needs to use it as a 

baseline.  Zoie Riel asked if it matters that the data has changed.  Anne Marie said that about 1% of the data 

for Red Hook was wrong.  James added that in comparison, for Towns in Westchester County, 20 – 30% of 

the data may be wrong, so they need another way to reach the data. Zoie Riel added that the baselines 

seem good for other sectors. 

ICLEI:  Brenda Cagle and Anne Marie Hirschberger discussed whether or not the Town needs to join ICLEI.  

Anne Marie said that she contacted Westchester County and was told that the Town would not have 

support for software and climate change work without membership.  She recommended that it be 

reinstated.  Brenda noted that the CAC has money allotted in the budget, and all members present agreed 

that the CAC should rejoin ICLEI.  The ICLEI software approach is to provide a series of programs with a suite 

of activities.  James Van Norstrand said that it is very good, but the CAC energy group still needs to know 

what it can achieve. 

WEBSITE:  Energy Manager Anne Marie Hirschberger told CAC members that it is important for the CAC 

information on the Town website to have a subset designated for energy issues, with information on rebates 

and tax credits.  The CAC discussed the need for a comprehensive energy and sustainability information to 

be included to support the development of the Climate Action Plan.  James Van Norstrand noted that it is 

hard to put all of the information together and suggested a one page description of renewable energy 

incentives.  Brenda Cagle said that the CAC had been contacted by a group called Blue Spring that manages 

websites.  Councilwoman Micki Strawinski said that she would ask Vicki Perry about her web site set-up, as it 

seems reasonable.  Sarah Imboden noted that if the website is set up, she can do updates.  Zoie Riel asked 

for an outline of what would be needed.   Anne Marie said that she would work on that. 

CLIMATE ACTION PLANNING:  The CAC and Energy Consultants discussed the need for a work plan to target 

outreach to various stakeholder groups in the community over the next 2-3 months to support development 

of the Climate Action Plan and lay the groundwork with these groups for implementation of the plan. Energy 

Manager Anne Marie Hirschberger asked about the stakeholder outreach sectors; Brenda Cagle reported 

that there are 20.  James Van Norstrand said that the energy group would look for help with introductions.   

Zoie Riel said that the CAC should go through the draft Climate Action Plan and choose items to market; she 

asked if there would be help with marketing.  Denis Collet asked if there had been an analysis of what needs 

to be done and wants to see feedback.  He really wants the analysis of the residential sector use, adding that 

the analysis is the hardest work.  

The energy group wants to have a draft Climate Action Plan completed by September 24, 2011 for Climate 

Action Day (also called Moving Planet by 350.org Global Initnative). Anne Marie asked about planning an 

event to launch the draft Climate Action Plan.  Brenda favors the idea of a “launch;” Laurie Husted suggested 

that it be held along with the 9/24/11 Climate Action Day, which is also Hardscrabble Day.  Susan Ellis said 

that the disadvantage of that date is that Hardscrabble Day does not focus on Red Hook, but in bringing 

visitors to Red Hook.  The CAC needs to work on a venue, format and date for the kick-off.  All agreed that 

advertising is critical. Denis Collet feels that after any event on 9/24/2011, the CAC should get public 

comment. 



ENERGY OR SUSTAINABILITY SUMMIT:  Zoie Riel asked if the CAC is considering another “Summit Day.”  

Brenda Cagle replied yes, because they have impact.  Zoie suggested in early December.  James Van 

Norstrand said that they hoped that by then the Town would be ready to adopt a Climate Action Plan.  

Laurie Husted said that it depends on the reduction goals decided upon and how the energy group would try 

to achieve them.  Discussion continued to determine the demographics of the group to be reached.  The 

CAC decided that it should be an informal summit focusing on families, perhaps at Bard College.  Anne Marie 

agreed, as the largest sector is residential and noted that could be followed by focusing on commercial and 

then institutional sectors(Bard College and schools).  Sarah Imboden asked if the Summit would be based on 

the draft Climate Action Plan.  James said that numbers wouldn’t change from the draft to the final plan, but 

strategies might, based on the response.   

PROPOSED HIGHWAY GARAGE DISCUSSION:  Brenda Cagle reported that she had gotten the latest 

information on the status of the New Highway Garage proposal from Supervisor Sue Crane.  Councilmanm 

Harry Colgan showed the revised site plan and noted that the proposal now includes two retention ponds to 

address run-off. 

Zoie Riel asked if the Town had received a letter from the Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC) 

regarding impacts on the Recycling Center property by the New Highway Garage proposal; she noted that 

the DEC could charge the Town for repayment of grant money spent on the Recycling Center.  

Councilwoman Micki Strawinski provided a letter from the DEC to Supervisor Crane indicating that the DEC 

will require advance approval for any plans to develop any portion of the Recycling Center property.  

Councilman Harry Colgan said that the way the Town needs to address the issue is to stress that shared 

services between the Town and Villages is the goal of the project and necessitates the use of the Recycling 

Center property.  He added that there can be some recycling established on the nearby Village of Red Hook 

property. 

Laurie Husted asked if New York State Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA) sent a 

scoping engineer to look at the project for energy conservation options.  Councilman Harry Colgan said that 

he did not know if it had been done.   Laurie asked if the project engineers, Crawford Associates, had met 

with NYSERDA technical staff for review; Harry said that he would find out. 

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES REVIEW:  Laurie Husted reported that at the May 16 Planning Board meeting a 

letter from Zoning Enforcement Officer Robert Fennell was read regarding the Wendy and Arvine Coons 

proposal to sell agricultural products at their property at the intersection of Rokeby Road and Route 9. 

 The Planning Board discussed a pre-application presentation for the James and Pamela Sheehan property 

on Hapeman Hill Road.  The issues are how to subdivide the property to conserve agricultural soils and the 

potential for sale of development rights. 

Zoie Riel will do the review of the Planning Board minutes for the CAC July meeting. 

RECYCLING:  Zoie Riel has worked on the Recycling flyer and she will put it on Transfer Station Manager TJ 

Hackett’s website.  Zoie asked about the numbers for the cost of the transfer station.  Councilwoman Micki 

Strawinski reported that there is a cost for hauling some materials.  Micki added that she has planned to e-

mail Purchasing Agent Ted Kudzy to do a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the garbage contractor at the 

Transfer Station, noting that Royal Carting has no contract. 



Sarah Imboden has done a flyer regarding the comparison of the cost of paying per bag for garbage disposal 

at the Recycling Center versus the cost of a private hauler.  The CAC suggested that it be laminated and 

distributed.  CAC members discussed the potential for increased cost if more garbage is brought with 

recyclables.   

Councilwoman Micki Strawinski reported that she had a call from a resident about the Reuse Center.  The 

resident said that volunteers at the Recycling Center were taking donations of good items and putting them 

aside for yard sales.  This complaint has been voiced before, and Micki noted that it is very difficult to 

address. 

10% CHALLENGE:  A current goal of the 10% Challenge Committee is to support the pilot CONSERT Program.  

Laurie Husted reported that the number of participants has not been met.  Zoie Riel suggested that the 

Committee needs to stress that participants should save money. 

Laurie Husted announced that for the 9/24/11 Climate Change event, the Committee hopes to have a ribbon 

cutting for “artwork” bike racks.  The Committee needs approval from the Planning Board for the bike racks.  

There will be a “decorate your bike” event planned also.  Laurie will revise the flyer. 

Brenda Cagle suggested having a celebration of the 10% Challenge on Climate Action Day.  James Van 

Norstrand said that the 10% Challenge Committee should carry the program forward. 

Denis Collet suggested promoting growing a garden as a part of reducing greenhouse gases. 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION (DEC)/ NEW YORK STATE ASSOCIATION OF 

CONSERVATION COMMISSIONS MEETING:   Brenda Cagle reported on the meeting held in Albany on June 

6, 2011.  Discussions included pharmaceutical disposal, community gardens in Irvington, climate change 

initiatives, new recycling mandates, open fires issues and a clean air outreach program.  The Electronic 

Equipment Recycling and Reuse Act will require manufacturers to have an e-waste acceptance program, will 

ban disposal in three phases and require at least one collection spot per county.  A Rechargeable Battery 

Law requires sellers to accept returns for recycling and will ban disposal by December. 

LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR REOPENING THE PROPOSAL FOR A CENTRAL SEWER SYSTEM:  Brenda Cagle 

asked CAC members for discussion of a letter of support to reopen the proposal for a central sewer system.  

She will redo the letter and send by e-mail. 

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 9:55 P.M. 

NEXT MEETING:  Wednesday, July 13, 2011 at 7 P.M. at the Town Hall 

Respectfully submitted, 

Susan H. Ellis, Secretary 


